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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The 0l1d Sibley County Courthouse occupies a prominent wooded site at Sixth and Main

Street in Henderson, Minnesota. Placed on a forty-eight by eighty foot foundation
of Kasota stone (a locally obtained creme-colored limestone) the building stands
two stories in height. Walls are constructed of yellow brick which was manufactured
in the Henderson Brickyard. A combination of brick and stones is employed to high-
light decorative features within the facade design; this treatment is apparent in
-windows arches, sills, keystones, date stone, and dentillated cornice,

Stylistically the old courthouse is executed in the Italianate mode, Originally
the truncated hip roof was punctuated by a centrally located cupola. (a feature of
the Villa style). This cupola, along with five of the original six brick chimneys,
has been removed. . Characteristic of the Italianate motifs are the attenuated window
openings on the second story, a combination of semi-circular and stilted arches,
symmetrical facades with cormers and central bays defined by pilasters, and low
bracketed gables over the central bays. The door and window moldings and fenestra-
tion is original,

On the interior, the first floor is bisected by a longitudinal hallway.
This floor was formerly designated for office use. (It:presently serves as com-
munity meeting space.) The second floor, the original couittroom, is accessible via
a wide staircase at the rear of the building., This space consists of a large open
hall/auditorium which occupies the entire second floor, With the exception of the
woodwork, little of the original detailing remains., There is a full basement under
the building. '

The building continued to serve community and'county functions from the time
of construction in 1879 until the county seat was moved to Gaylord in 1915, It
has since served community needs, and continues to be maintained in a good state of
repair., :
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The "borough" of Henderson functioned as the county seat of Sibley county
until 1915 at which time the county offices were moved to a new building in Gaylord.
During the 1860s the county government was housed in temporary quarters. One of the
temporary "courthouses' was the Welch Building in Henderson. All county records
were destroyed when fire gutted the Welch Building on 18 October 1863. This
circumstance prompted the Sibley County Commissioners to draft a resolution on 2
January 1867 to request the state legislature to pass an act enabling the county to
issue bonds (in the amount of $20,000 for a new courthouse, In 1870 a four acre
tract of land at Sixth and Main Streets in Henderson was purchased for $5000. A
two-story sheriff's residence and jail were erected on the site in 1871, WNearly
eight years later, in 1879, final arrangements were made for the erection of the

M"first permanent courthouse."

The courthouse was constructed according to plans and specifications submitted
by Frank Barnard. The style of the building is Italianate, in accordance with the
 architectural "vogue" of the period. Upon completion, a total amount of $12,419,96

was expended on the new county facility. : - ol

Since its completion, the 0ld Sibley County Courthouse served the needs of
county government and later of community groups and agencies. It is recognized as the
"first permanent courthouse" in the county and attests to a stylistic preference in
public architecture during the years following the Civil War, It remains today as
a functional reminder of the beginnings of Sibley County and the role of Henderson
as its County Seat.
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